
 

1 
 

Minutes of December 8, 2014, meeting of the Marcellus Shale Safe Drilling Initiative Advisory 
Commission 

Approved by e‐mail as of 1/23/15: Commissioners Harry Weiss, Jeffrey Kupfer, Annie Bristow, 
Steve Bunker, Jim Raley and Mayor Peggy Jamison 

The Commission held its 35th meeting on December 8, 2014 at two locations, the Garrett 
County Health Department in Oakland and the Maryland Department of the Environment in 
Baltimore.  The two sites were linked by conference call.  In attendance in Oakland were 
Chairman David Vanko and Commission members Senator George Edwards, Mayor Peggy 
Jamison, Shawn Bender, and Paul Roberts, and staff member Brigid Kenney.  Attending in 
Baltimore were Commissioners Delegate Heather Mizeur, Steve Bunker, Nick Weber, and Harry 
Weiss, and staff member Christine Conn. MDE Secretary Bob Summers and DNR Secretary Joe 
Gill were also at the Baltimore meeting. Commissioners Ann Bristow and Cliff Mitchell called in.  
Members of the public were present at both locations. 

Chairman Vanko called the meeting to order at about 4:00 pm. Secretary Summers thanked the 
Commissioners for their service, noting that the issues were numerous and challenging and that 
the Commissioners had been exceptionally hardworking and dedicated. He read a proclamation 
from Governor O’Malley in recognition of Chairman Vanko’s work.  Secretary Gill similarly 
praised the Commissioners for having been “thirsty to figure it out” and read a proclamation 
from the Governor recognizing Delegate Mizeur’s work.  This proclamation was representative 
of proclamations that each of the other Commissioners would receive. Chairman Vanko 
acknowledged the proclamations and praised the Commissioners for their cordial, thoughtful, 
civil behavior throughout. 

The minutes of the November 25 meeting were adopted unanimously with three amendments. 

Chairman Vanko then summarized briefly the work of the Departments and the Commission 
since August 2011. He said that the judgment of the Departments, as expressed in the draft 
final report, was that high volume hydraulic fracturing in the Marcellus Shale could be done 
without unacceptable risks if the practices were followed, sites were inspected, and violations 
were punished.  He noted that the draft report also acknowledged that the risks can be reduced 
but not eliminated and that best practices will evolve. 
 
Commissioner Roberts said that he had sent an email to Commissioners floating the idea that 
the Commissioners might want to write to Governor‐elect Hogan asking that the process the 
Commission has undertaken be respected and that he consider adopting regulations that are 
consistent with the key features of the recommendations.  Commissioners Bunker, Jamison, 
Weber and Weiss spoke in favor of the idea. Senator Edwards suggested dropping the 
reference to “key” recommendations and merely sending the report to the Governor‐elect so 
that his advisory could review it.  Commissioner Weiss suggested that the letter remind the 
Governor‐elect of the significant time the Commission, the public, outside experts, and staff 
had spent and ask him consider the report carefully. Commissioner Bristow also mentioned that 
the health study was the first of its kind, that citizen involvement had been extensive, and that 



 

2 
 

citizen scientists would be needed to monitor the gas development activity.  Chairman Vanko 
mentioned the health study and the proposal for adaptive management.  Commissioner 
Roberts said that he would like to see clear language that regulations are useless without 
inspection and enforcement.  Senator Edwards said the letter should be simple: the regulations 
need to be updated and the report can be a guide.  He reminded the Commissioners that they 
had not voted on the recommendations in the final report. 
 
Commissioner Bristow noted the recommendation on page 87 of the draft report that the 
enforcement provisions of the existing statute should be revised to provide for additional civil 
penalty fines. She asked whether MDE and DNR would draft legislation.  Staff responded that 
legislation would be under the control of the new Administration.  The Commissioner stated 
that it was important to ensure that people were compensated for harm and also emphasized 
the need to eliminate trade secrets. 
 
Commissioner Mitchell had emailed comments on the draft report that were summarized orally 
by Ms. Kenney. The first was a clarification and expansion of the provisions for disclosure of 
trade secret information for treating physicians and public health officials.  The second was a 
recommendation for health surveillance, perhaps not for a specific illness, but for clusters of 
symptoms or outcomes.  It could also provide baseline rates.  Commissioner Bristow endorsed 
the idea of medical surveillance. 
 
Commissioner Weber noted that the draft final report followed closely on the risk assessment, 
but that there was little mention of the State’s risk assessment or the Ricardo risk assessment 
in the draft final report.  Both have risk rankings, although they break out the risks differently.  
Commissioner Weber suggested that the report make clear that the risks are not eliminated. He 
feared that adequate funds will not be available for public health monitoring, baseline 
monitoring, or ongoing monitoring.  He said that a wide variety of chemicals should be 
monitored. Industry has said that the two years of baseline monitoring is expensive and 
unnecessary and will thwart the development of natural gas. 
 
Commissioner Weber expressed concern that the severance tax may not be enough to pay for 
the increased demand on the health care infrastructure and emergency response. Chairman 
Vanko said that the first report recommended a State‐level severance tax, and Commissioner 
Roberts recalled that the Commission had not been able to agree on the tax rate.  
 
Delegate Mizeur said that the Executive Order directed us to consider whether and how 
unconventional gas development could be done without unacceptable risk.  She said the 
Commission had paid too little attention to the “whether.”  She feared that enforcement would 
be underfunded and urged the Departments to estimate the cost of the program. She noted 
that there were many unknowns, and that she thought the risks are unacceptable.  She is not 
saying “never, no where, no how” but rather that we should leave the gas in the ground for 
now.  That would eliminate the risks.  Commissioner Roberts agreed that State resources would 
be needed.  Commissioner Weber was disappointed that the State had not come up with a 
dollar amount. Ms. Kenney explained that the current draft of the regulations had a 



 

3 
 

placeholder for the permit fees and that the Departments were actively working on calculating 
the amount that would be needed.  Chairman Vanko suggested that we look at what other 
states charge. 
 
Commissioner Weiss acknowledged the need for vigorous enforcement.  He said he thought 
that the Comprehensive Gas Development Plan (CGDP) was not necessary, and that the State 
could accomplish its goals through the individual permit process instead. 
 
Commissioner Weber said that the CGDP is cited as reducing several of the identified risks, but 
that the Ricardo study identifies 27 risks where the CGDP can play a role but shows only 2 
instances where the CGDP would be effective.  The Ricardo report should be carefully reviewed, 
he said. 
 
Commissioner Bristow said that, given that drilling might go forward under the new 
Administration without safeguards, it is essential that the public should be involved in 
monitoring and should have access to monitoring data.  She said that the GPS data on truck 
movement should be available online in real time, and if cuttings are buried, citizens should 
know the concentrations of pollutants and the amount of cuttings. 
 
Additional comments on the final report were provided by Commissioner Bristow by e‐mail and 
are provided below: 
 

1) CGDP: formalized, if not statutory, role for DHMH and local health departments. The 
pubic health concerns are paramount in UNGDP; however, MDE does not have the 
expertise or capacity to evaluate permits for public health effects. I don't think that a 
loose and unspecified collaboration with public health stakeholders is sufficient to 
ensure public health protection. 
 
2) Air monitoring: recommend monitoring of episodic and spike emissions events. There 
are new technologies developing. And though I have mixed feelings about the burden 
being placed on citizen‐scientists, better that approach than none at all. I remain 
concerned that the ARMA stakeholder meeting(s) haven't occurred. 
 
3) community/public online access in order to increase citizen engagement; e.g., GPS on 
trucks hauling waste; CGDP stakeholder process; monitoring data; test results of drill 
cuttings permitted for on‐site disposal 
 
4) import all MIAEH recommendations for baseline, surveillance data and citizen 
engagement. 
 
5) chemical disclosure: this recommended BP is far from a gold standard and will inhibit 
the research that is critically needed. Trade secrets are placed above public health. I 
think this is unethical. There is certainly now enough documentation that public health 



 

4 
 

is being compromised by allowing industry to claim trade secrets and coerce harmed 
citizens into non‐disclosure agreements. 
 
7) waste disposal: CGDP should include a waste disposal plan. It is noteworthy that an 
API spokesperson commented at one of our meetings that the 90% recycling of 
flowback and produced water is not feasible. The public should know in advance how an 
operator plans to dispose of all of their waste. 
 
8) well casings and cement failures: failure to site the 2014 Ingraffea research is a 
glaring omission. 
 
Finally, does MDE plan to introduce legislation recommended on p. 87: "The 
enforcement provisions of the existing stature should be revised." 
 
As many of us have said, the BPs are worthless as protection without stringent 
enforcement. As you state on p. 88: "The addition of administrative and civil penalty 
provisions with appropriate fines would help deter violations." 

 
 
Following a brief break, the public was invited to comment. 
 
Dave and Amy Nard spoke about the risks of radiation.  Monitoring for NORM and TENORM will 
not be sufficient, especially if shaped charges using radioactive metals are used.  These charges 
should be tracked to their end of life.  How will the public be involved?  The State could be a 
leader on this issue. Different isotopes have different hazards. It is grossly negligent to dispose 
of radioactive materials in landfills. They were appreciative that the radiation hazard risks of 
radiation sealed source charges and radon were recognized in the final draft report. 
 
Elizabeth Grant, a native of Garrett County, spoke of the devastation that other natural 
resource extraction industries had wrought on the County.  She said it is imperative that we do 
not make another mistake that will further degrade Garrett County.  
 
Eric Robison said that he has been studying Marcellus Shale issues for four years.  The most 
important question now is what the County should do.  He urged the new County 
Commissioners to protect the community and address its needs 
 
Marilyn Moors spoke next. She is 80 years old and has devoted time and money to improving 
her property.  She does not own her gas rights. She has breathing problems and said not 
enough attention has been paid to air pollution. She is concerned that if she has to sell her 
property and move because of health issues, she will not be able to recoup her costs due to 
decreased property values.  
 
Lisa Jan, a Garrett County resident and business owner said that no one should be allowed to 
decide for her what risks are acceptable. She said that her business, Blue Moon Rising, has been 



 

5 
 

bringing new people into the County for the unique experience of an eco‐friendly resort.  She 
said that if fracking comes, she will sell or close her business and leave. She said that if she has 
to sell her business, she will lose money. 
 
William Vargas, a 12 year old Maryland resident, asked for a ban on fracking.  He spoke about 
his introduction to the beauty of nature in Western Maryland and said that some things cannot 
be bought. Fracking can release chemicals into the air, into rivers and streams, and into the 
groundwater that is used for drinking. He also distributed a photograph of himself on a rock 
outcrop overlooking a scenic view of western Maryland mountains to all the Commissioners in 
attendance. 
 
Liz Bayner of Howard County said she was mystified by the recommendation that hydraulic 
fracturing should go forward.  Where will all the toxic waste go? Dr. Ingraffea has documented 
the rate of failure of well casings.  What do we tell our children?  The industry has spent huge 
sums of money fighting controls on benzene.  The gas will be shipped to China and Japan.  The 
State talks about property rights – what about the rights of people who will lose their property 
to sea level rise caused by climate change? 
 
Ann Corin of Howard County said she was a retired chemist and a member of Transition 
Howard County. She said suppose she gave you a vial of gas that could be either clean air or air 
from a fracking site.  Would we take the risk of opening the vial?  She said fracking has 
devastated cities and contaminated an entire aquifer in California. What will the ultimate cost 
to the State be?  Fracking is unnecessarily risky. 
 
Nadine Grabania first said that the State’s own risk assessment said that a 1 km setback would 
be less risky than a 2,000 foot setback, and yet the State was recommending the 2,000 foot 
setback.  There are risks to health, to tax revenues the County needs, and it is not clear that 
fracking will benefit anyone.  She urged that we use the precautionary principle and not allow 
fracking. 
 
Ruth Yoder said she was born and raised in Garrett County.  She is worried that the voices of 
residents and citizens will be lost.  She can’t imagine what her viewshed will be like if fracking is 
allowed.  She said setbacks should not be based on what other states do.  She begged that the 
State remember the voices of the residents when industry gets loud. 
 
Robert Payne, representing a coalition of property owners who would like to develop their gas 
provided written comments and also spoke.  His written comments gave four examples of 
recommendations that were unnecessarily restrictive.  He asked whether it is in the economic 
interests of Garrett and Allegany Counties to be so strict when they have only 1.6% of the 
Marcellus Shale gas.  He said that Garrett and Allegany are the second and fourth poorest 
counties in Maryland.  He requested that the State evaluate the cumulative effect of all the 
restrictions and, if the effect is to shut down gas drilling, to reevaluate the situation. 
 



 

6 
 

Lisa Bardock said she is deeply concerned about the health impact and is here as a mother and 
concerned citizen.  Nondisclosure agreements make it impossible to evaluate the true risks.  We 
are taking a gamble because well casing will not last forever.  She said that Maryland should not 
allow fracking because too much is still unknown.  Nevertheless, she recommended that, if 
fracking goes forward, that the stringent regulations recommended be adopted. 
 
Barbara Christensen, of Howard County, spoke about environmental justice and listed her 
concerns: fracking brings radioactive material to the surface; the wastewater treatment plants 
can’t handle the waste; the sludge will be radioactive and will contaminate the land; vehicles 
will be carrying radioactive waste on the roads; spreading wastewater on roads is a bad idea; 
storage containers leak; and methane from the Marcellus Shale contains radon. She also 
referenced the New York State human health risks fact sheet. 
 
Aaron Mintzes of EarthWorks said that he was concerned about enforcement, and whether the 
State could catch up when more permit applications are filed.  He commended the zero air 
emissions of methane standard and the two years of pre‐drilling monitoring.  He said it was not 
too late to close the RCRA loophole that excludes oil and gas exploration and production wastes 
from classification as hazardous wastes. 
 
Jane Avery said she was recovering from brain surgery. She said gas development would not 
solve Garrett County’s problems and challenged the three new County Commissioners to think 
more creatively.  She said cottage industries would be a better economic development 
direction. 
 
Charles W. Lovell, III expressed his belief that sludge with heavy metals, radioactivity and PCBs 
would permanently contaminate the land.  He said the counties could become a smaller version 
of Chernobyl and Love Canal. 
 
Derek Johnson, a resident landowner, said he thinks the Commission has wasted thousands of 
hours and millions of dollars.  What’s the big rush?  Leave the gas in the ground for now.  The 
argument for energy security is a sham; it is all about money. If they get the gold mine, we get 
the shaft. 
 
David O’Leary of the Sierra Club, Maryland Chapter, thanked the Commission and staff for their 
work, but said that the work is not done. There are open issues about long term health impacts.  
Moving forward with regulations without assurance that money will be there for monitoring 
and enforcement is dangerous. MDE has never had enough money for enforcement.  The State 
should slow down. 
 
Theresa Ruder said that we cannot go forward with fracking.  We should leave the oil and gas in 
the ground and turn to solar and wind power.  Maryland should be an example for the rest of 
the nation as a leader in sustainability and should use sustainable sources of energy. 
 



 

7 
 

Stewart Stainman of Towson said that he would support the State’s recommendations if he 
thought fracking could be done safely, but the track record of the oil and gas industry does not 
inspire confidence that it will be. Companies will take short cuts, not follow best practices, and 
just pay the fines and keep going.  He suggested that the State consider criminal penalties for 
gross negligence.  He also noted that too little attention had been given to the transport of 
natural gas from the well to the user. 
 
Susan Snow paraphrased Dr. Keith Eshleman as saying that it was not a question of if wells 
would fail but when. She enjoys the clean environment we have because past generations 
fought for clean air and clean water.  We still have problems – why do we want more?  She 
referred to Section 1‐302 of the Natural Resources Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland 
that declares the policy that state agencies are stewards of the air, land, and water and that 
they have an obligation to protect the environment for future generations and that each person 
has an inalienable right to a healthful environment.  She said that we need to take care of the 
land and take care of the people. 
 
Marcia Tiroche thanked the Commission, but said that she would prefer no fracking or more 
stringent regulations.  She said the prospect horrifies her, and that the boom will not make up 
for the bust. 
 
Larry Wolfe spoke about the good jobs that could come with reasonable gas extractions, 
averaging $80,000 per year.  His organization supports good projects.  There are apprenticeship 
programs and safety is taught.  He said that the CGDP should not be mandatory and that there 
was no need for two years of predrilling monitoring.  He said that Maryland was trying to hold 
the oil and gas industry to a higher standard than other states and higher than other industries 
in Maryland.  He said that we should look behind the numbers.  For example, if there had been 
one accident previously and two accidents later, it would be a 200% increase, even though it 
was just one more accident.  He urged the State to reconsider the restrictions if it deters gas 
development in Maryland. 
 
Dr. Donald Milton, the principal investigator of the MIAEH health study spoke next. He 
appreciated the work of the Commission, but recommended that more studies were needed.  
The language in the draft report referring to anecdotal reports and spikes in air concentrations 
does not give due weight to the data.  He said that we need both health research and health 
surveillance. He said that a study to detect an association between fracking and a relatively rare 
health outcome would take years because the numbers would be so small, but if we don’t look, 
we’ll never know.  Such a study would benefit Maryland and the whole world. He 
recommended that the State begin public health surveillance studies now and not waste the 
opportunity. 
 
Drew Cobbs acknowledged the work of Jeff Kupfer, the industry representative on the Advisory 
Commission.  He said the Maryland Petroleum Council had assisted the work of the Commission 
by providing information.  He said that 24 other states are drilling.  He objects to some of the 
best practices because they are theoretical and unproven.  He also said that the process would 



 

8 
 

take too long and the setbacks are excessive and inflexible.  As an example, he said, forcing the 
well pad to be 2,000 feet from a residential drinking water well might mean the well pad would 
have to be put in a forested area.  He supported the permit fee bill so that the Department 
would have adequate resources to do enforcement.  He said there was never any intention to 
use the existing rules, and that the drilling and hydraulic fracturing obviously need to be 
regulated. 
 
Pat Riley said that no amount of economic penalty will cause big oil companies to do the right 
thing.  People need to be held accountable for the harm they do.  Individuals in corporations 
who do wrong should be put in jail and he advocates for criminal liability.  He does not believe 
that fracking can be done safely if there is the possibility that cementing and casing might fail.  
 
Katherine Dubansky noted that it’s ironic that the areas richest in natural resources are the 
poorest economically.  She said best practices for stormwater are not enforced on logging 
operations.  West Virginia does not even have a hazardous spill response team.  She is not 
prepared to accept the risks of fracking.  She urged Garrett County to figure out what it really 
wants to be. She does not want to be a baseline statistic for a health study or a symptom 
cluster. 
 
Mark Stutzman said he had spent a career in advertising and that he and his wife had helped to 
develop the “Deep Creek Experience” brand. It encompasses not only the lake, but also the 
authentic and local farming, hiking, and fishing opportunities that Garrett County offers.  He 
said natural gas development would undermine what the County is trying to do and be. 
 
William Gumbert spoke for himself and his wife Roxanne. He owns 25 acres with a well, a spring 
and two houses.  He hopes that, at a minimum, all the recommendations will be adopted.  He 
does not understand how the setback from a school is only 1,000 feet. He said all the setbacks 
should be increased, and that adopting and enforcing the laws and regulations, and maintaining 
oversight will take political will.  It is a moral obligation. 
 
Gabriel Echeverri said we have been wasting our time – we should have said no to fracking at 
the beginning.  What good is money if we can’t drink the water or eat the food.  The politicians 
should be prepared.  If the people are attacked, we’ll fight back.  If the wells burn, the 
politicians will feel the heat. 
 
Jackie Sams noted that Maryland has just a small amount of gas, but if it impacts your health, 
the air, the roads, etc., it is a big deal. We are dealing with the legacy of past resource 
extraction.  In 25 years, we’ll see the legacy of gas production here. 
 
Woody Getz thanked the Commissioners and all the members of the public who participated 
for their civility.  He praised the Appalachian way of life and urged that we preserve what we 
have.  He suggested sacrificing 2% of the gas was a small price to pay to protect our water and 
our way of life.  The setbacks can’t be far enough.  Water should not be sold for fracking.  Let’s 
keep Maryland the way it is. 



 

9 
 

 
In addition to the verbal comments provided, several written comments were submitted and 
are attached as scanned documents.  
 
There being no further business, the meeting adjourned around 6:15. 






















